
Democratic Services 
 
 

 

 

 
 

HEALTH LIAISON PANEL 
 

Tuesday 4 March 2025 at 7.00 pm 
 

Place: Council Chamber - Epsom Town Hall 
 
 
The members listed below are summoned to attend the Health Liaison Panel meeting, on the 
day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda. 
 

Councillor Christine Cleveland (Chair) 
Councillor Liz Frost 
Councillor Bernice Froud 
 

Councillor Bernie Muir 
Councillor Kim Spickett 
Councillor Darren Talbot 
 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Chief Executive 
 
For further information, please contact democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 
01372 732000 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

No emergency drill is planned to take place during the meeting. If the fire alarm sounds 
continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the 
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital 
that you follow their instructions.   

 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 

 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but 
move to the assembly point at Dullshot Green and await further instructions; and 

 Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so. 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 

Public information 

This meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom. A limited number of seats will be available on a first-
come first-served basis in the public gallery at the Town Hall. If you wish to observe the meeting from the 
public gallery, please arrive at the Town Hall reception before the start of the meeting. A member of staff 
will show you to the seating area. For further information please contact Democratic Services, email: 
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000. 

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the Council’s 
website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes. 

Agendas, reports and minutes for this Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app for iPad, 
Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information regarding this 
Committee, please email us at Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk. 

 

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 

There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose confidential 
or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). Should any such matters arise during the course of discussion of the below items or should the 
Chair agree to discuss any other such matters on the grounds of urgency, the Committee may wish to 
resolve to exclude the press and public by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted. 

 

Questions and statements from the Public 

Questions and statements from the public are not permitted at meetings of this Committee. Annex 4.2 of 
the Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Operating Framework sets out which Committees are able to receive 
public questions and statements, and the procedure for doing so. 

 

Filming and recording of meetings 

The Council allows filming, recording and photography at its public meetings. By entering the Council 
Chamber and using the public gallery, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings. 

Members of the Press who wish to film, record or photograph a public meeting should contact the 
Council’s Communications team prior to the meeting by email at: communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 

Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting. The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non-handheld devices, including tripods, will not be allowed. 

mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/council/about-council/governance/Annex%204-2%20-%20Protocol%20Members%20of%20Public%20Speaking%20.pdf
mailto:communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To receive declarations of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or other 

registrable or non-registrable interests from Members in respect of any item to 
be considered at the meeting. 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 
 The Panel is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting of the 

Panel held on 21 November 2024 (attached) and to authorise the Chair to sign 
them. 
 

3. HEALTH AND WELLBEING (DRAFT) STRATEGY - UPDATE AND 
OVERVIEW  (Pages 7 - 12) 

 
 The Panel shall receive and consider an update presentation from the 

Community Development Manager on the Draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2025/28. 
 

4. EPSOM AND ST HELIER HOSPITALS UPDATE  (Pages 13 - 18) 
 
 The Panel shall receive and consider an Epsom and St Helier Hospitals update 

paper from St George's, Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals and Health 
Group. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 

 
Epsom and Ewell Borough Council 

 
Minutes of the Meeting of the HEALTH LIAISON PANEL held at the Council 

Chamber, Epsom Town Hall on 21 November 2024 
 
 

   
  

PRESENT - 
 

 
Councillor Christine Cleveland (Chair); Councillors Liz Frost, Bernice Froud, 
Bernie Muir, Kim Spickett and Darren Talbot 
 
In Attendance:   Councillor Rod Ashford (Reigate and Banstead Borough Council) 
 
Officers present: Rachel Epton (Community Development Manager), Serena Powis 
(Community Development Officer) and Victoria Sandri-Healy (Community Development 
Officer) 

 
 

   
 
 

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

No declarations of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or other registrable or 
non-registrable interests were made by Members in respect of any items to be 
considered at the meeting. 
 

6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

The Panel confirmed as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting of the Panel 
held on 17 July 2024 and authorised the Chair to sign them. 
 

7 MARY FRANCES TRUST  

The proposed presentation on the work of the Mary Frances Trust in Epsom & 
Ewell and the Safe Harbour Schemes did not take place as the representative(s) 
from the Mary Frances Trust did not attend the meeting. 
 

8 ACTIVE SURREY DISCUSSION PAPER  

The Panel received and considered a discussion paper regarding Active Surrey’s 
Surrey-wide initiatives. 

The panel considered the following matters: 

a) The Panel noted that Epsom & Ewell Borough Council grant Active Surrey 
£2,000 per annum to support Epsom based projects in schools supporting 
vulnerable young people and are a key part in delivering the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy in the Borough. 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 

Meeting of the Health Liaison Panel, 21 November 2024 2 

 

 
Epsom and Ewell Borough Council 

b) Members commented that the document was unclear and lacking in 
background information. They remarked that they were unsure of the 
purpose of the Friday Night Project did and suggested that Epsom & Ewell 
Borough Council would not be able to fund the Step Out to Step In project. 

c) A Member commented that the Surrey Youth Games were not mentioned 
in the document and enquired as to what was happening with the Surrey 
Youth Games in future. They remarked that the Play Streets Project was 
operating only on Miles Road, Epsom, and enquired as to what the uptake 
had been across Surrey.  

 
9 GESH LETTER ON INTERSTITIAL LUNG DISEASE  

The Panel considered and discussed a letter provided by St George’s Epsom 
and St Helier (GESH) University Hospitals and Health Group, regarding the care 
of patients with Interstitial Lung Disease (ILD) at St Helier Hospital. 

In accordance with Appendix 5, CPR 3.7 of the Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 
Constitution, and s.11b(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, this late item 
was published further to the Chair of the Health Liaison Panel being of the 
opinion that it should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency owing 
to her view that it was of high importance that the Panel be made aware of the 
matter urgently on account of the impact it may have on Epsom & Ewell’s 
residents, and due to recent attention on the matter from the media. 

The Panel considered the following matters: 

a) The Panel requested that an update be brought to the next meeting of the 
Panel, and that a response should be sent setting out the Panel’s 
concerns. 

b) A Member enquired as how many people were affected, what the long-
term implications were, and what actions were going to be taken going 
forward. 

 
 
The meeting began at 7.00 pm and ended at 7.25 pm 
 

 
COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE CLEVELAND (CHAIR) 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



Health Liaison Panel 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy up-date 

Rachel Kundasamy – Community Development Manager 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



 Neighbourhood Boards started in mid-2023.
 They were born of the Pulling Together Programme started in early 2022 – 

a programme that was in response to the C19 Pandemic, and put ‘place’, 
at the heart of all local health and community initiatives.

 The aim of the board is to bring a sense of community cohesion – working 
collectively to address the needs of the community, draw on local 
provision and resource; building on local knowledge and community assets 
as opposed to deficits.

 Epsom and Ewell held its first board in November 2023
 Boards are chaired by the D&B’s, with core membership extended to 

Surrey Downs Health & Care Partnership and the Primary Care Networks.
 Core memberships is to be extended, and this Partnership Forum is the 

first meeting being held to start bringing partners together. 
 The board has held 4 meetings and based on population health data, have 

agreed on mental health as its key priority. 

Neighbourhood Boards:

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 3



Mental Health in the borough:

At the time of the last strategy, the prevalence of depression was 9.3% 
and currently it stands closer to 11.2%. The 4th highest in Surrey. We 

also have the lowest rating for ‘happiness’.

Over the last 3-years the borough has also seen its suicide rates spike 
at 14 per 100,000 of the population, and the highest rate in Surrey. New 

data does show this is now decreasing. 

The prevalence of depression is 17% in the loneliest areas of the 
borough, in comparison to 10% in the least lonely.

 

The prevalence of anxiety is 10.8% in the loneliest areas of the 
borough, in comparison to 6.4% in the least lonely.

 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 3



 The Council developed its Health & Wellbeing Strategy in 2019.
 Delivery of strategy impacted by C19 Pandemic and the Council’s 

response to the Governments refugee programmes.
 Programmes delivered included: The Epsom Pantry, Epsom Hub, 

Community Boxing, Community Swimming, Happy to Chat benches, 
roll out of HSF with community partners, Surrey youth Games, 
multiple projects bringing in ACH.

 Development of a Suicide Prevention Action Plan – successful event 
for World Suicide Prevention Day event 10th Sept 2024. Rollout of 
Suicide Awareness / Reducing Stigma Training.

 All of the community development projects have impact on mental 
health and wellbeing.  

Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2019-2023

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 3



 The Community & Wellbeing Committee approved the continued 
development of the Councils revised strategy in January 2025 and 
is being taken back to the March Committee.

 We held a Neighbourhood Board Partnership Forum – who agreed 
with mental health being the over-arching priority

 The over-arching aim is to improve the mental and emotional 
wellbeing of residents through: 

Increasing access to activity, creating opportunities and reducing isolation. 

Targeting CYP, and those impacted by the wider-determinants of health and by 
circumstance.

 This further supports the work of the Neighbourhood Board.

Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2025-2028

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



 
 
REPORT TO EPSOM AND EWELL BOROUGH COUNCIL’S                                    
HEALTH LIAISON PANEL  
  

 Report Title  
Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals 
NHS Trust: Update  
 

 Report Date  19 February 2025 

 Meeting Date  04 March 2025 

 Report Author  James Blythe, Managing Director  

  
This briefing provides the Merton Healthier Communities and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel with an update on Epsom and St Helier hospitals. The briefing covers:  
  

 Finance and performance update  
1.1 Performance update  
1.2 Finance update   
 

 Other updates  
2.1 Maternity services  
2.2 New Hospital Programme 
2.3 Recruitment and retention 
2.4 Epsom car park 
2.5 Interstitial lung disease (ILD) care  
  

1. Finance and performance update  
 

1.1 Performance update  
Included in this report is the link to December’s Integrated Quality and Performance Update 
for St George’s, Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals and Health Group. Key points to 
highlight, relating to Epsom and St Helier, are below. 
 
 

Epsom and St Helier performance overview 
We continue to perform above the national target for theatre utilisation in December (81.1%, 
top quartile) and have reduced our length of stay since April 2024. We have performed 
slightly below the national four-hour performance standard in our Emergency Departments 
and this due to winter pressures, timely ambulance handovers, acuity on both sites and an 
increase in patients who needed specialist mental health care. Some key figures are 
outlined below. 
 

 Elective care   
The Trust achieved our aim to be below 715 in November 2024 for Referral to 

Treatment (RTT) 52 weeks waits, with 692 patients waiting more that 52 weeks. 

We will continue to implement our plans to eliminate waits across specialities, and 

anticipate having zero 65 week waits by the end of February. 

 

 Non-elective care   

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

https://www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/download.cfm?ver=53842


We delivered 74.7% performance against the 4-hour ED standard in January 2024 
compared to December 2024, 71.8%.  

o On average across January there were 414 daily attendances compared to 
a daily average of 448 attendances during December. 

 
o We reported 1501, 12 hour breaches in December, averaging 48 breaches 

per day, this compares to 1703 in December (55 per day).  
 

 Cancer  
 

All cancer performance standards were achieved in December 2024. This 
includes the 28 day Faster Diagnosis (81.9%), 31 day first treatment (97.8%) 
and the GP 62 day first treatment (85.3%).  

   
1.2 Finance update  
As the NHS continues to navigate a challenging financial environment, we remain focussed 
on delivering our financial plan and working toward financial balance. Hospitals across the 
country, including Epsom and St Helier, are struggling to balance budget deficits and 
maintain patient care. The Trust and hospital group is working to reduce its current 
overspend while balancing patient safety with meeting performance standards. The Trust’s 
configuration, including two emergency departments, acute medical services, intensive care 
teams, impatient maternity services, and children’s care, makes its financial position 
extremely challenging. 
 
Despite this, we see this as an opportunity to innovate and transform. Recently, Deloitte 
completed a review of our financial position, confirming the accuracy of our forecasts and 
validating some planned actions while identifying further opportunities for improvement. The 
Group Executive and site leadership teams are actively developing plans informed by 
Deloitte’s findings and exploring additional opportunities.  
 
Some of our next steps include: 
 

 Work closely with system partners to address external pressures such as South West 
London (SWL) who have provided a Medium Term Financial Model (MTFM) 
framework but as a Group we will look further ahead than this at some of the 
underlying drivers of the SWL financial position  

 Increased focus on key areas, including agency controls of all staff groups, temporary 
medical staff costs, nursing rota management and continued challenge through our 
panel that reviews all vacancy requests 

 Continued focus on Cost Improvement Programme (CIP) identification and delivery 
within the Trust. 

 
The Trust is expecting to report a deficit of £51.8m at year end. 
 
 

2. Other updates  
 

2.1 Maternity services   
Last year our staff delivered around 3,421 babies at Epsom and St Helier University 
Hospitals.  

 
There have been a number of improvements across Epsom and St Helier Hospital (ESTH) 
maternity services as a result of our 2023 CQC inspection. 
 
Governance and Oversight 
Out of the 15 total actions identified (9 "Must Do" and 6 "Should Do"), 9 actions are 
complete, and 6 actions remain in progress. ESTH is projecting full completion of all actions 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



by 31 March 2025, except for the longstanding estate/ premises issues which the new 
hospital build programme will resolve. 
 
An Evidence Assurance Panel (EAP) was established in July 2024 and meets monthly. The 
EAP reviews the action plans and progress of the “must” and “should do” actions from the 
CQC report of February 2024. The panel evaluates impact of the actions and ensures im-
provements made are sustainable before they are signed off as complete. The EAP reports 
progress to the St George’s, Epsom and St Helier (gesh) Quality Group and the Quality 
Committees in Common. 
  
ESTH performed extremely well in the CQC Maternity Survey published last November for 
the second consecutive year and were:  

 Much better than expected in 3 areas 

 Better than expected in 4 areas, and 

 Somewhat better than expected in 3 areas.  
 
Service user experience was best in postnatal care in 3 categories:  

 Partner being able to stay overnight, delays to discharge on the day of leaving the 
hospital, and staff doing all they can to manage service user's pain 

 Best in antenatal care:  if service users had concerns, they were taken seriously 

 Best in labour and birth: feeling that healthcare professionals did everything they 
could to help manage pain. 
 

Additionally, when compared to other trusts, no questions for ESTH fell in the banding of 
'much worse, worse than or somewhat worse than expected'. 
 
The Maternity Incentive Scheme of the Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST) is in 
its 6th year, and ESTH has self-reported compliance for all ten Safety Actions within the 
scheme. In addition to the internal governance process for the review of the evidence, the 
Local Maternity and Neonatal System (LMNS) has also scrutinised the evidence and 
supports the Trust’s self-reported compliance. The deadline for the Board declaration to be 
sent to NHS Resolution advising on compliance status is midday 3rd March 2025. 
 
We continue to work closely with the Maternity and Neonatal Voices Partnership (MNVP), 
which represents the service user voice and experience and helps influence and shape our 
maternity services. 
  
Our infant feeding team is working closely with health-visiting colleagues to improve the 
transition of care between services and ensure consistency in feeding information and 
support for parents. The Baby Friendly Initiative (BFI) ensures public services can enhance 
family support in feeding and nurturing close relationships, ensuring all babies receive the 
best possible start in life. Our recent BFI assessment, Gold status reassessment last 
October showed a significant improvement in the support offered around infant feeding. 
Neonatal Units are also on the pathway to BFI accreditation, working jointly with maternity 
services to ensure parents with babies requiring extra care receive the same level of 
breastfeeding support. 
  
 
Looking ahead, our plans for 2025 include: 

 Continuing to deliver on our maternity improvement programme 

 Starting a preconception clinic, initially on a fortnightly basis with the potential for 
weekly if there is a need. This includes seeing women and birthing people with pre-
existing renal disease for preconception counselling in the joint obstetric and renal 
antenatal clinic at St Helier.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 
2.2 New Hospital Programme update 
The Chancellor announced there will be a review of the New Hospital Programme on Mon-
day 29 July 2024 and that it will give a "thorough, realistic and costed timetable for delivery". 
  
On Monday 20 January 2025, the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care announced 
the outcome of the review in Parliament. The government has agreed a funding approach 
for the programme, with three waves of investment to build the new hospitals.  
 
We are pleased that the Government continues to be committed to investing in our plans 
and has confirmed that our scheme is part of Wave 2. However, this does mean that 
construction of the Specialist Emergency Care Hospital in Sutton will begin from 2032.  
 
What happens now? 

 As a Board, we are reviewing the implications of the review outcome. This includes: 
o understanding what a delay to the construction start date means for us and the 

partners on the Sutton site; 
o the impact at our existing hospitals and working with the system to mitigate 

any potential failures to critical infrastructure so that our services remain safe. 
 We are also working with NHS England to source funding to continue to improve the 

estate at both Epsom and St Helier hospitals.  
 We have already invested £60million over the last five years to improve our estate 

and will continue to invest in our services for the benefit of our staff and communities..  
  

2.3 Recruitment 
The Trust’s current vacancy rate is 12.5%, which is 2.5% above our target of 10%.  

At the time of writing, our recruitment challenges include hiring specialist clinical areas, 
including in community services, maternity and A&E and radiography. For the first three 
areas, we have had success in recruiting to previous “hard-to-fill" roles, and we have  
launched a recruitment campaign to recruit international educated radiographers from 
overseas and this is ongoing. 

 
2.4 Epsom car park update 
We know that the car park at Epsom is a constant source of concern among visitors as de-
mand for spaces consistently exceeds supply, the infrastructure could be improved and 
queues to access the site often stretch back down Dorking Road. 
  
We have planning permission for the new Multi-Storey Car Park, which expires in December 
2025. We are developing our plan to begin work on the car park at pace, and are currently 
working through ways to make this happen. At the time of writing, we anticipate we could 
start work on the car park within 9 months. 
 
2.5 Interstitial Lung Disease (ILD) care at St Helier update 
Interstitial lung disease (ILD) is a lung disease that is progressive and often severe. Most of 
our patients have a form of the disease called Idiopathic Pulmonary Fibrosis for which, 
sadly, the average survival after diagnosis is only 3-3.5 years.  
 
Following a review of care of ILD by a specialist team of doctors and nurses, we discovered 
that around 200 patients at St Helier Hospital were not on the correct treatment plan for ILD 
over a five-year period due to a consultant departing from best practice.  
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



The consultant is no longer working for the trust and has had their practice restricted by the 
GMC. The Trust reviewed the records of 1600 patients being treated for lung conditions at 
St Helier Hospital have been reviewed to ensure they are on the correct treatment plan.  
 
All patients with ILD who needed any intervention or course correction to their treatment 
have now been seen.  
 
As well as contacting patients to apologise for not identifying the doctor’s departure from 
best practice sooner, we have requested follow-up appointments for those affected, opened 
an advice line and commissioned an independent clinical review by the Royal College of 
Physicians to make recommendations. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	3 Health and Wellbeing (Draft) Strategy - Update and Overview
	4 Epsom and St Helier Hospitals Update

